

The Derbyshire Partnership Forum c/o Derbyshire County Council County Hall Matlock DE4 3AG

Telephone: +44 (0)1629 580000

13 September 2010

Dear Derbyshire Partnership Forum Member,

#### **DERBYSHIRE PARTNERSHIP FORUM**

The next meeting of the Derbyshire Partnership Forum (DPF) is to be held from **10.00am** on **Friday 24 September 2010 at County Hall, Matlock.** Refreshments will be available prior to the meeting and a buffet lunch will be provided following the meeting.

Please find attached the full agenda and papers for the meeting including the minutes and action points from the previous meeting. The latest minutes of the Thematic Partnerships are attached as a separate document.

If you have any queries or require additional information, please do not hesitate to contact Cath Walker on 01629 538359 or <u>cath.walker@derbyshire.gov.uk</u>.

\_\_\_\_\_

Please confirm whether or not you can attend by return of email to Andrea Bond <u>andrea.bond@derbyshire.gov.uk</u>. Please indicate any access or dietary requirements.

## **DERBYSHIRE PARTNERSHIP FORUM (DPF)**

## 24 September 2010

## Agenda

- 1. Welcome and apologies
- 2. Minutes of the last meeting and matters arising
- 3. Minutes of the DPF Thematic Partnerships (in a separate document)
- 4. White Paper Equity and Excellence: Liberating the NHS
- 5. Local Enterprise Partnership Proposal for Derby, Derbyshire, Nottingham and Nottinghamshire
- 6. Volunteer Centres in Derbyshire
- 7. Single Third Sector Database no report
- 8. Total Place Review of Advice Services
- 9. Derbyshire Observatory Launch (followed by an interactive opportunity to use the Derbyshire Observatory over lunch)
- 10. Partnership Annual Report
- 11. Any other business

Date of the next meeting 10 December 2010

#### Dates of future DPF meetings

- 25 March 2011
- 24 June 2011
- 23 September 2011
- 9 December 2011

**NOTES** of the **DERBYSHIRE PARTNERSHIP FORUM** held on 25<sup>th</sup> June 2010 at County Hall, Matlock.

## PRESENT

Υ.	,
Advice Derbyshire	Derbyshire County Council
D Walker	Councillor J Allsop
	Councillor C Hart
Amber Valley Borough Council	Councillor C Jones
Councillor S Bradford (also	Councillor A Western
representing DCC)	B Buckley
S Bamford	S Eaton
	T Ellingham
Amber Valley CVS	R Gent
L Allison	S Goodwin
	D Lowe
Big Lottery Fund	A Milroy
M Rowe	J Overfield Shaw
	B Robertson
Bolsover LSP	I Stephenson
M Chambers	A Thomas
Releaser District Council	M Whelan
Bolsover District Council	J Wildgoose
Councillor E Watts N Price	Derbyshire Dales CVS
IN FILCE	<b>Derbyshire Dales CVS</b> N Moulden
CHART LSP	n moulden
S Lee	Derbyshire Dales District Council
	S Capes
Churches Together in Derbyshire	
R Jordan	Derbyshire Fire and Rescue
	J Amos
Connexions	S Frayne
H Hastie	
	Derby Hospitals
Derbyshire Association of Local	J Acred
Councils	
B Wood	Derbyshire Police Authority
	J Birkin
Derby City Partnership	
C Labram	Derbyshire Probation Trust
	R Plang
Derbyshire Constabulary	
M Creedon	Nexth Fred Devloyeki (1970)
B Thacker	North East Derbyshire District Council
Environment Agener	Councillor G Baxter
Environment Agency	M Goodwin

Nick Hodgson (Derbyshire County Council) (in the Chair)

S Quinlan	<b>NHS Derbyshire</b>
<b>Erewash Borough Council</b>	D Black
P Wright	I Forrest
<b>Erewash CVS</b>	NHS Tameside and Glossop
P Edwards	E Michel
GOEM	<b>Skills Funding Agency</b>
S Battlemuch	C Hibbard
High Peak Borough Council	South Derbyshire District Council
Councillor E Thrane	Councillor R Wheeler
<b>Jobcentre Plus</b>	Stop Smoking Service
B Kendall	T Jones
LINKS CVS C Lawton N.E Derbyshire CAB P Morris	Third Sector Support for Derbyshire (3D) C Thornber

Apologies for absence were submitted on behalf of Councillor C Corbett (Erewash Borough Council), Councillor J Harrison (Derbyshire County Council), Councillor H Jennings (Derby City Council), Councillor A Lewer (Derbyshire County Council), Councillor S Spencer (Derbyshire County Council), B Ashley (EM Museums, Libraries and Archives Council), H Bowen (Chesterfield Borough Council), P Coleman (Peak District National Park Authority), K Fletcher (Third Sector Support for Derbyshire – 3D), E Green (Derbyshire Wildlife Trust), L Hart (Derbyshire Health United - NHS), J Jaroszek (Erewash Borough Council), D Jeffery (Derbyshire Employment and Skills Board), W Jones (Derbyshire Health United - NHS), D Larner (High Peak Borough Council), W Lumley (Bolsover District Council), J McArthur (Chesterfield College), F McArdle (South Derbyshire District Council), M Molloy (Derbyshire County Council), P Nourse (Three Valleys Housing), Bishop H Repton (Churches Together in Derbyshire), P Rouse (Derbyshire Constabulary) J Smith (South Derbyshire CVS), B Smithurst Derbyshire Economic Partnership), L Wallace (Bolsover CVP), D Wheatcroft (Derbyshire Dales District council), D White (Derbyshire Probation Service), A Wilkinson (Derby City Council) and A Wright (Derbyshire County Council).

15/10 <u>MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING</u> The minutes of the previous meeting held on 26<sup>th</sup> March 2010 were confirmed as a correct record.
16/10 <u>MATTERS ARISING ON THE MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING</u> The following issue was raised:-

#### Page 8/9, Minute Reference -10/10 Total Place

It was confirmed that funding had been secured and therefore work in relation to Total Place would continue as previously agreed.

17/10 MINUTES OF THE DPF BOARD The minutes of the DPF Board meeting held on 2<sup>nd</sup> June 2010 were received.

The following issues were raised:-

#### Page 2, Minute Reference – 09/10 Minutes of the Last Meeting and Matters Arising (Proposal for Single Third Sector Database)

Richard Jordan reported that work was progressing well in relation to this proposal. Critical coverage had been secured across the county which meant that the proposal would be effective and further work was being undertaken in relation to options for software provision. He took the opportunity to thank partners for their help and support so far.

#### Page 2, Minute Reference 10/10 Community Forums

Councillor Bradford confirmed that Amber Valley Borough Council was currently talking to partner organisations to try and improve public attendance at meetings. Nick confirmed that some positive feed back had been received with a general feeling that Forums should be continued in some form.

#### Page 3, Minute Reference 12/10 Comprehensive Area Assessment (CAA) and Beyond?

Nick reported that partner organisations had been supportive of the Forum producing an Annual Report. A workshop would take place after the forum meeting which would enable the Partnership to review progress against priorities set out in the Derbyshire Sustainable Community Strategy for 2009-2014.

#### Page 6, Minute Reference 16/10 Credit Union Provision for Derbyshire

Further to this minute reference, David Lowe reported that although RIEP funding had been secured for this initiative it had been subject to a funding package being in place and as stated in this minute reference, this would not be possible as an agreement to a proposal could not be reached. Further discussions had taken place and Nottingham Credit Union was still looking to expand services across Derbyshire where there was no current provision. Worksop Credit Union was working with Chesterfield and Bolsover. Manchester Credit Union was still looking to expand into High Peak and possibly the Northern Derbyshire Dales.

David indicated that investigations were ongoing with regard to the money partners had contributed towards the study undertaken by ABCUL and an update would be given when available.

18/10 MINUTES OF THE DPF THEMATIC PARTNERSHIPS The minutes of the following DPF Thematic Partnerships were received:-

- Children and Young People's Trust Board 18<sup>th</sup> March 2010 and 20<sup>th</sup> May 2010; -
- Culture Board 23<sup>rd</sup> March 2010 and 25<sup>th</sup> May 2010; -
- Health and Wellbeing Partnership  $-1^{st}$  March 2010 and  $17^{th}$  May 2010; Safer Communities Board  $-2^{nd}$  June 2010;
- -
- Sustainable Communities Board 25<sup>th</sup> May 2010 and -
- Transformational Management Board 29<sup>th</sup> March 2010 and 10<sup>th</sup> May 2010.

**19/10** ALCOHOL HARM – UPDATE ON CROSS CUTTING WORK The Forum received a progress report which gave details of work which had been undertaken to address the reduction of alcohol harm in Derbyshire. The reduction of alcohol harm was one of the top three priorities for the work of the Forum. As part of the update, Diane Steiner from the Derbyshire Drug and Alcohol Action Team delivered a presentation which illustrated how work had been taken forward in Derbyshire to address this issue.

The report indicated that the harm caused by alcohol misuse would affect most member organisations in terms of their work to improve the lives of Derbyshire residents and would address issues such as community safety, health, (re)offending, positive futures for young people, housing, employment, teen pregnancy, sexual health and supporting families.

The presentation gave updates on:-

- the wider context around alcohol harm;
- the current situation in Derbyshire;
- performance against national indicators;
- alcohol related hospital admissions;
- what action has been taken locally to address alcohol harm and
- barriers and opportunities.

In response to the report and presentation the following issues were raised:-

- funding issues and the importance of securing money for preventative measures was emphasised;
- potential cuts to the budget would impact on trying to move forward;
- cross boundary issues with regard to Derby Hospital taking admissions from the South of the county;
- requirements and needs for long term care and support plans and how these would be affected;
- impossible to stop young people drinking but controls could be introduced to regulate quantity, type and access;
- difference between public drinking and drinking at home with associated implications leading to domestic violence;
- measures need to be imposed in relation to the sale of "cheap" alcohol in supermarkets (a national problem), although the difficulty of imposing restrictions was acknowledged, it was suggested that this could be addressed through campaigns;
- all mainstream staff need to be involved on a daily basis rather than just for special initiatives/projects, and awareness raised in relation to the large impact alcohol can have on society;
- current licensing laws and pricing make alcohol too readily available;

**RESOLVED** that the Forum (1) confirm that reducing alcohol harm will remain a top priority for the Derbyshire Partnership Forum;

(2) support the commissioning of a Hospital Alcohol Liaison Team to work with Chesterfield Royal Hospital;

(3) ensure that frontline staff take up DAAS training on identification and brief alcohol interventions (<u>www.daas.uk.com</u> 0845 308 4010)

(4) promotes alcohol awareness with partnership staff both as individuals and as parents;

(5) support multi-agency work, recognising the links between health, community safety and social (e.g. housing, employment) support, and ensure that relevant staff engage with local groups to tackle alcohol harm.

**20/10 EMPLOYMENT OF PEOPLE WITH A LEARNING DISABILITY** The Forum received a presentation in relation to employment of people with a learning disability. It was reported that learning disability and employment had been an important national and local priority in recent years. Key national strategies which related to employment and learning disability were currently being reviewed. The State of the Nation report had been published by the coalition government in May which surveyed disadvantage in the UK and informed the approach of the new government. People with learning difficulties had been identified as one of the groups which faced particular disadvantage and therefore measures needed to be taken in an effort to address this.

A range of specialist services has already been established in Derbyshire and additional investment has been secured for the improvement of recruitment and creation of opportunities in the county council and other Derbyshire public service providers. Certain areas of the private sector had also engaged in the process such as Morrison's and the Co-operative Retail Groups. Gary Alexander a representative of the Co-operative Retail Group attended the meeting to share their experiences with forum members. Unfortunately a representative from Morrison's was unable to attend the meeting however it was noted that similar provision and outcomes had been experienced by them. The reported outcomes were very favourable from both sources. Pilot studies had been undertaken via MENCAP which once completed had resulted in permanent positions being secured. The people involved in the study had proved to be loyal, hard working and enthusiastic.

Derbyshire County Council had undertaken a pilot study and it was agreed to report the outcomes of this to a future forum meeting.

Reference was made to activities which had been undertaken in other countries, such as the successful cafes which were run by people with learning difficulties in Amsterdam. It was acknowledged that extending this type of initiative would be a challenge to small employers; however in general terms all partners agreed to give this further consideration.

The Chair thanked Gary for attending to share his company's experiences.

**RESOLVED** (1) to note the contents of the presentation;

(2) that the results of the pilot studies being undertaken in Derbyshire be circulated to partners at the appropriate time.

21/10 <u>LOCAL AREA AGREEMENTS: UPDATE ON PERFORMANCE 2009/10</u> The Forum considered a report which gave details on the progress made towards the achievement of targets agreed within the Derbyshire Local Area Agreement (LAA) as at the end of 2009/2010.

The Forum was informed that 21 indicators had met or had exceeded the target, 5 indicators were within 5% of achieving the target and 24 indicators were 5% or more away from achieving the target. The report compared performance between the latest position and its equivalent in the previous year. 32 indicators had performed better, 15 indicators had performed worse, 1 indicator was performing the same and 2 indicators could not be compared with the previous year. Full details of the indicators performance, details of the key exceptions and overall LAA performance by the Thematic Board had been provided separately in the appendices to the report.

The report indicated that overall there had been a positive direction of progress in respect of LAA performance with a further 11 indicators showing a positive direction of travel since the last quarter.

The Forum accepted the report and in response made the following comments:-

 it was noted that this would be the third and final year of implementation and the benefits of partnership work were acknowledged. It was suggested that a consultation exercise should be undertaken in an effort to determine where LAA activities should be concentrated for the future and whether partner organisations would be prepared to commit to them;

Steve Battlemuch from GOEM reported that the continuation of the LAA framework would be for the partnership to decide as it was unlikely that Government would dictate although confirmation was awaited.

**RESOLVED** (1) to note the progress made towards the achievement of LAA targets in 2009/10;

(2) that partners determine possible priorities and activities for the future and a report be presented to a future meeting.

22/10 <u>DERBYSHIRE'S JOINT STRATEGIC NEEDS ASSESSMENT (JSNA</u> 2009)/DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC HEALTH'S (DPH) ANNUAL REPORT The Forum was asked to note the publication of the 2009 JSNA/DPH Annual Report. The report gave an update on Derbyshire's health and wellbeing priority issues which included those which had been identified for 2010. Partners were asked to encourage feedback on local health and wellbeing issues.

The JSNA had built a web-based resource of health and wellbeing data in order to establish up-to-date trends in health and wellbeing issues. This could be found at:-

http://www.derbyshire.gov.ukSocialhealth/inspectionofservices/jointneedsassessment.default.as p. It had been recognised that identifying the priority areas at a county-wide level is a reasonably straight forward process. However in a county as large and diverse as Derbyshire there are considerable local variations in health and wellbeing experiences and partners were asked to identify local variations, concerns or observations by feedback through the website.

In response to the report, reference was made to issues around funding for the identified priorities and the need to work together to address mental health issues was highlighted.

**RESOLVED** (1) to note the contents of the report;

(2) that partners encourage widespread discussion of the reports content and priority areas;

(3) that partners encourage feedback of comments, observations and arising issues.

**23/10 HEALTH INEQUALITIES STRATEGY** David Black, the Director of Public Health, gave an update on progress which had been made on the development of the 'Health Inequalities Strategy'. He confirmed that it had been circulated to the appropriate bodies for comment which included members of the Derbyshire Partnership Board and chairs of the thematic partnerships. Comments had been collated and the next step would be to approach the Thematic Partnerships to discuss how relevant sections of the strategy would impact on their work. David agreed to report back on progress in 6 to 9 months.

**RESOLVED** that a progress report be presented to the Forums December 2010 or March 2011 meeting.

24/10 <u>REDUCING DEATHS AND INEQUALITIES IN DERBYSHIRE CAUSED</u> <u>BY TOBACCO</u> The Forum gave consideration to a report which provided a summary of progress in relation to reducing the harm from tobacco in Derbyshire. It also made recommendations for further progress with regard to reducing death, suffering and health inequalities caused by smoking and exposure to tobacco smoke.

The report indicated that smoking was the single biggest cause of preventable death in Derbyshire and was responsible for almost half of the difference in mortality between the most deprived 20% of the population and the average. Smoking was also a major cause of house fires and fire related injury and death.

Since the publication of the Smoking Kills White Paper in 1998, considerable progress had been made in relation to the reduction of smoking prevalence and the protection of people from the harmful effects of second-hand smoke. Derbyshire has an effective tobacco control alliance (Derbyshire Action on Smoking – DAS) and excellent stop smoking services are available throughout. The Derbyshire Action on smoking (DAS) had updated its strategy and its key strategic objectives were detailed in the report. Tina Jones, the programme manager for tobacco control in Derbyshire attended the meeting and explained work which had been undertaken in Derbyshire.

The report contained the following recommendations which would continue to drive down the human suffering and economic damage caused by smoking:-

#### Helping people stop smoking.

- 1. that training on signposting to local NHS Stop Smoking Services be offered to all front line staff. This includes health staff and staff in non health care settings (e.g. library workers, social workers and workplace occupational health departments)
- 2. that staff from partner organisations encourage colleagues and clients who smoke to seek help from local NHS Stop Smoking Services;
- 3. that partner organisations discuss organising workplace stop smoking sessions with Derbyshire County Stop Smoking Service/DAS (where several employees smoke on site stop smoking sessions can work very well);

#### Protecting people from smoke and changing the culture

- 4. with support from the Derbyshire Action on Smoking Team (DAS) all partner organisations:
  - i. ensure that their organisational objectives are consistent with the Derbyshire Action on Smoking objectives;
  - ii. sign the Derbyshire Smoke Free Charter;
  - iii. ensure appropriate representation on the DAS Steering Group;
  - iv. ensure that their policies meet the requirements of Smoke Free Legislation;
  - v. make their grounds, sites and vehicles smoke free;
  - vi. ensure their policies cover illicit tobacco use in the workplace and
  - vii. protect all workers from second hand smoke.
- 5. that partner organisations who are in a position to do so, work with enforcement agencies to reduce the availability of smuggled, counterfeit and other illicit tobacco;

#### Protecting children

- 6. that partner organisations endorse the priority of preventing the uptake of smoking amongst young people;
- 7. that partner organisations with an opportunity/role to undertake, do so and make an organisational commitment to protecting children and others from exposure to second-hand smoke in the home and car by having an active involvement in the roll out of Derbyshire Smoke Free Homes and Cars project across Derbyshire.

#### Delivering a Smoke free Derbyshire

8. that the Health and Wellbeing Partnership monitor progress every six months and report back to the Derbyshire Partnership Forum as required to ensure satisfactory progress.

**RESOLVED** to support the recommendations contained in the report.

**25/10 DERBYSHIRE EMPLOYMENT AND SKILLS BOARD** The Forum received an update report for information from the Derbyshire Employment and Skills Board.

### 26/10 ANY OTHER BUSINESS – GOEM – BUDGET/SPENDING REVIEW

Steve Battlemuch from GOEM referred to the challenges the public sector would face in order to address the departmental budget cuts. He indicated that a letter had been sent the previous day asking public sector employees for suggestions and ideas for efficiencies. He appealed to agencies to draw this to the attention of employees as soon as possible as the website would close on 8<sup>th</sup> July 2010. Partner's agreed and it was suggested that a request for employees to copy their managers in to any suggestions made should be included.

**27/10 DATE OF NEXT MEETING RESOLVED** that the next meeting be held on Friday 24<sup>th</sup> September 2010 commencing at 10.00 am at County Hall, Matlock, Derbyshire.

**28/10 DATES OF FUTURE MEETINGS RESOLVED** that the remaining meeting for 2010 be held on Friday 10<sup>th</sup> December commencing at 10.00 am at County Hall, Matlock, Derbyshire.

## Derbyshire Partnership Forum

## 24 September 2010

## White Paper – 'Equity and Excellence: Liberating the NHS'

#### **1** Purpose of the Report

- To provide a summary of the NHS White Paper 'Equity and Excellence: Liberating the NHS', published in July 2010.
- Outline the process to date in managing the transition and implementation of the White Paper.
- Provide a basis for discussion.

### 2 Background

The White Paper 'Equity and Excellence: Liberating the NHS' was published in July 2010. It is radical and has major implications for local authorities which become accountable to government for population health and health improvement. There is also major reorganisation of the NHS, particularly affecting:

- Responsibilities of local authorities (LA) and NHS bodies
- The commissioning function,
- Arms Length bodies

The White paper has been followed by consultation documents inviting responses by 11 October 2010: (<u>http://www.dh.gov.uk/en/Healthcare/LiberatingtheNHS/index.htm</u>.) A Public Health White Paper is expected at the end of 2010.

The PCT has already begun to make management cost reductions and the process will accelerate to achieve the required 50% reduction. The financial position of the PCT has resulted in stopping any new or allocated but as yet uncommitted spending.

#### 3 Main elements of the White Paper

#### **Key Principles**

The White paper aims to:

- Uphold an NHS that is free at the point of use and based on clinical need
- Commit to real terms increases in NHS spending each year of the Parliament
- Achieve an NHS which achieves results amongst the best in the world
- Increase choice and involvement of patients
- Give clinicians (particularly GPs) a much stronger role in commissioning

It also aims to increase democratic legitimacy and local autonomy including significant changes to responsibilities for local authorities (LAs) including:

- Responsibility for delivering population health outcomes and 'health improvement'
- Coordination of the system
- Inform and steer the strategic priorities for health and the commissioning of health services to deliver them

#### Structures and responsibilities

Primary Care Trusts (PCTs) and Strategic Health Authorities (SHAs) will be abolished along with the Health Protection Agency, General Social Care Council, and National Treatment Agency for Substance Misuse. Their responsibilities will be transferred to other bodies, including:

- GP Commissioning Consortia (There are no strict criteria for these as yet and it is too early to say how many may be created in Derbyshire)
- NHS Commissioning Board with regional outposts
- National Public Health Service with a Director of Public Health (DPH) jointly appointed with the local authority with a ring-fenced 'Public Health budget'
- Local authorities with new responsibilities for population health, health improvement and reducing inequalities
- HealthWatch England and local HealthWatch (LA responsibility)

## 4 Summary of consultation paper on local legitimacy in health

#### Role of local government

The White paper intends to build on the existing power of wellbeing and enhance the role LAs and of elected local councillors. The consultation paper on local democratic legitimacy in health states that unitary/upper tier LAs will take a convening role. The White paper makes limited reference to second tier LAs but does indicate membership of the Health and Wellbeing Board and that the upper tier may want to delegate the lead for some functions to districts or neighbourhoods.

LAs will bring the perspective of local place into NHS commissioning plans to enable a broader and more effective view of health improvement. They will promote integration of 'NHS, social care and public health services across boundaries'. Four areas of greater responsibility are listed:

- Lead the joint strategic needs assessment (JSNA), to ensure coherent and coordinated commissioning strategies
- Support local voice and the exercise of patient choice
- Promote joined up commissioning of local NHS services, social care and health improvement and
- Leading on local health improvement and prevention activity.

The Secretary of State, through the Public Health Service, will set LAs national objectives for improving population health outcomes. LAs will be responsible for how this is achieved including by commissioning services from NHS providers.

#### Strengthening patient and public involvement

The LA will commission HealthWatch arrangements to serve their local population. HealthWatch will evolve from the existing LINks arrangements to become more like a "citizen's advice bureau" for health and social care supporting people to exercise choice and to make their voice heard in health service planning.

#### Improving integrating working – Health and Wellbeing Boards

The government is currently inclined towards establishing statutory arrangements that place clear duties on all relevant partners. The proposals include the establishment of a statutory 'Health and Wellbeing Board' (H&WB) led by the local authority and with some freedom and flexibility on how this works locally. It proposes four main functions of the H&WBs:

- To assess the needs of the local population and lead the statutory joint strategic needs assessment;
- To promote integration and partnership across areas, including via joined up commissioning plans across the NHS, social care and public health;
- To support joint commissioning and pooled budget arrangements, where all parties agree this makes sense; and
- To undertake a scrutiny role in relation to major service redesign (taking on the statutory functions currently with the Overview and Scrutiny Committee).

The government proposes the H&WB will operate at upper tier LA level, but states 'the boards would want to put in place arrangements to discharge their functions at the right level to ensure that the needs of diverse areas and neighbourhoods are at the core of their work, and that democratic representatives of areas below the upper tier can contribute. This would be particularly important in two-tier areas, where boards may want to delegate the lead for some functions to districts or neighbourhoods'.

The proposed membership of the H&WB includes local councillors (both tiers), social care, NHS commissioners, local HealthWatch, the DPH and Directors of Children's Services and Social Care. Elected members would determine the Chair. The H&WB will facilitate effective engagement between local government and NHS commissioners. H&WBs will provide a means for LAs to influence NHS commissioning and correspondingly enable NHS commissioners to influence health improvement, reducing health inequalities and social care. The H&WB will have a lead role in determining the strategy and allocation of any local application of place based budgets.

The LA's strengthened **scrutiny role** through the H&WB will include:

- Bringing in the voice of consumers through HealthWatch.
- Providing a mechanism to identify shared goals and priorities and minimise the potential for disputes.
- Providing the NHS Commissioning Board assurance that the GP consortia are fulfilling their duties and responsibilities to local people.

#### Leadership for health improvement

When PCTs cease to exist, responsibility and funding for health improvement will be transferred to LAs. Embedding leadership for health improvement within local government builds on the existing success of many joint DPH appointments. The government intends to 'unlock synergies with the wider role of LAs in tackling the determinants of ill health and health inequalities'.

LA leadership for health improvement will be complemented by creation of a National Public Health Service (PHS), which will integrate health improvement and protection functions. Local Directors of Public Health will be jointly appointed by the LA and PHS, and will have a ring-fenced public health budget to deliver national and local priorities. This budget and matched responsibilities are likely to include funding for health improvement; including lifestyle improvement (e.g. stop smoking, alcohol and, physical activity) and probably for other services and interventions. There is likely to be dual accountability to the LA and to the Secretary of State (via the Public Health Service). The DPH will also have direct influence over the wider determinants of health (poverty, economic prosperity, housing etc), advising members as part of the senior management team of the LA. A Public Health White Paper is expected late 2010.

## 5 Role of the GP consortia

GP consortia will be statutory bodies responsible for commissioning most NHS services (including most hospital, emergency services and community care, mental health and learning disability care). Consortia will also have an important role in ensuring the quality of primary care services delivered by its constituent practices. They can employ staff and/or buy in commissioning support services (including needs assessment, information and analysis) from other organisations including from LAs, private companies and voluntary organisations. They may collaborate through lead consortia arrangements. PCTs are expected to prepare practices for these new arrangements. Consortia are expected to work in partnership alongside other partners in the LA Health and Wellbeing Board to contribute to effective joint action to promote health and wellbeing, health improvement, integrated delivery of adult health and social care, early years' and safeguarding. Consortia must determine health care needs and work in partnership with LAs on JSNA, also take account of the views of the public. The NHS Commissioning Board will calculate practice level budgets for commissioning and allocate these to the consortia.

Consortia should begin to form now and undertake 'comprehensive' shadowing in 2011/12 at which time the NHS Commissioning Board will also be established in shadow form. The system should be fully operational in 2013/14.

## 6 Role of the NHS Commissioning Board

The NHS Commissioning Board will be more autonomous from central government control than previous similar NHS organisations and will:

- Provide national leadership on quality, develop commissioning guidelines and model NHS contract
- Promote public/patient involvement and choice
- Ensure the development of consortia
- Hold consortia to account for outcomes of NHS care, finances and partnership with LAs.
- Commission some services such as primary medical care itself, specialised services, maternity, dental, pharmacy and probably prison health.

## 7 Role of National Public Health Service

This yet to be established service will bring together existing health improvement and protection bodies and will jointly appoint the DPH with the LA. The National Public Health Service will have responsibilities for:

- Screening
- Vaccination and Immunisation
- Emergency planning and resilience
- Advising the Secretary of State on national health improvement outcomes

There are few details but there are likely to be powers in relation to the NHS and direct accountability to the Secretary of State. A Public Health White Paper is expected late 2010.

## 8 NHS Provider Organisations

All NHS providers should move towards Foundation Trust (FT) Status and all provider services still lying within PCTs must be separated by April 2011. FTs will be governed by a rules based system of regulation with the Care Quality Commission as the quality inspectorate for health and social care and Monitor providing economic regulation (competition, pricing and some responsibilities for continuity of access to key services).

FTs will be more autonomous and for instance, may be able to determine pay for their own staff.

## 9 Progress in Derbyshire

The main developments to date are:

- Derbyshire Community Health Service (DCHS) is moving to gain NHS Trust status from April 2011
- Engagement with local GPs and the Local Medical Committee to gather views and begin the process of developing GP Consortia
- PCT setting up a 'transition' board (Clinical Commissioning Board) to support the establishment of GP Consortia
- PCT staff engagement events held and preparations underway to reduce management costs further.

## 10 Opportunities and risks

There are clearly opportunities to strongly influence population health and health services for the benefit of Derbyshire people. There may be opportunities to improve efficiency and joined up services. There are risks because the system is new and the financial situation will be challenging, requiring that all organisations work together to make best use of resources and also to agree on priorities. Several new organisations are being created, including GP Consortia, and will be essential to successful delivery.

## 11 Conclusion

The White Paper is radical and gives LAs major new roles and responsibilities over health, both population health and the commissioning of NHS services. Much detail is awaited. There are some interesting issues such as potential conflicts of interest for GP Consortia which have GP 'providers' also as commissioners and the Health and Wellbeing Boards with potential strategic health planning and health scrutiny functions. It is not clear how existing ways of working such as the 'Safer' Board, DAAT, Children's Trust and health and wellbeing Board proposed in the White Paper.

The County Council, Districts/Boroughs and other partners will need to consider how to shapes their roles and engagement through these new arrangements. The 'Derbyshire Way' has been to work in partnership with a high degree of trust and consensus and this is likely to remain the most effective model.

#### **12 Recommendations**

- 1 That the PCT regularly updates DPF on progress
- 2 That DPF discusses the implications of the White Paper and what arrangements are likely to work best in Derbyshire.
- 3 That DPF members consider submitting consultation responses by 11 October 2010

#### Dr David Black Director of Public Health NHS Derbyshire County

For more information please contact: David Black, Director of Public Health, NHS Derbyshire County David.Black@derbyshirecountypct.nhs.uk 01246 514189

#### **Derbyshire Partnership Forum**

#### 24 September 2010

#### **Report of Derbyshire County Council Chief Executive**

#### Local Enterprise Partnership Proposal for Derby, Derbyshire, Nottingham and Nottinghamshire

#### Purpose of the report

To update partners on the Local Enterprise Partnership proposal submitted to Government for Derby, Derbyshire, Nottingham and Nottinghamshire.

#### Background and information

The joint letter from the Secretaries of State for Business Innovation and Skills and Communities and Local Government dated 29 June set out the rationale for replacing the Regional Development Agencies with new sub regional Local Enterprise Partnerships. The letter states that Local Enterprise Partnerships will wish to provide strategic leadership in their areas to set out local economic priorities. A clear vision is vital and the new partnerships will be tasked with rebalancing the economy towards the private sector. The letter asked for proposals to be submitted by 6 September 2010.

Derby City Council, Derbyshire County Council, Nottingham City Council and Nottinghamshire County Council submitted a proposal to the Government on Friday 3 September in advance of the 6 September deadline. A copy of the final submission is attached at Appendix A.

Despite the challenging timescale the bid was the subject of consultation with a range of partners. Over forty responses from a number of public and private bodies, including representative organisations acting on behalf of their members were received. There was considerable support from the business community with the Derbyshire and Nottinghamshire Chamber enthusiastically supporting the creation of a single local enterprise partnership for Derbyshire and Nottinghamshire believing that it will be fit for purpose and that it will promote the economic development of two vibrant and dynamic cities and counties.

The partnership is committed to effective cooperation and collaboration with other local enterprise partnerships and will work closely on matters of mutual interest and benefit. This will involve taking advantage of natural synergies to ensure close working with Sheffield City Region to the north, Lincolnshire to the east, and Manchester and Birmingham to the west.

It is anticipated that feedback from the Government will be received by the end of September, at which point we should get a better understanding of the timescales for implementation.

## Recommendation

Partners to note the content of the report

#### Nick Hodgson Chief Executive Derbyshire County Council

Appendix A

# Derby, Derbyshire Nottingham, Nottinghamshire

# **Local Enterprise Partnership Proposal**

03/09/2010



## Foreword

Our local enterprise partnership will drive and enhance our shared economic interests to stimulate growth and jobs. The direction for this will come from our private sector partners.

We will drive economic growth by building on existing strengths in aerospace, automotive, rail, biosciences and medical technology; supported by strong locally delivered business services, and exploiting the international attractiveness of the Peak District National Park, World Heritage Site and Sherwood Forest legacy. We have a track record of delivering success through our resilience and diversity to meet challenging economic conditions.

Our local enterprise partnership will be lean, flexible and responsive. It will have responsibility for encouraging enterprise, innovation and supporting key sectors. It will strategically commission and coordinate inward investment and trade activity as well as promotion and tourism. It will help develop a strategic employment and skills approach to provide employers with the workforce they need. It will align and inform investment prioritisation in planning, housing, transportation and digital infrastructure. Our success will be judged by a thriving private sector and a transition to a low carbon economy.

This proposal has been produced by a wide range of private, voluntary and public partners. It has been endorsed by over 130 businesses including world class companies and our three universities.

We welcome Government's commitment to decentralisation and localism. We are using this opportunity to drive efficiency and growth. So our proposal sets out the freedom and tools we need in a partnership with Government to deliver an ambitious agenda.

Councillor Harvey Jennings Leader Derby City Council

Councillor Kay Cutts Leader Nottinghamshire County Council

Councillor Andrew Lewer Leader Derbyshire County Council

N. M.

Councillor Jon Collins Leader Nottingham City Council

## Contents

1.	INTRODUCTION	5
	Our Vision Our History Our Future Opportunities	5 5 6
2.	RESPONSIBILITIES	9
	Context Enterprise, Innovation and Sector Support Inward Investment and Trade Promotion and Tourism Employment and Skills Infrastructure and Planning, including Housing	9 9 10 11 12 12
3.	GOVERNANCE	15
	Principles Our Local Enterprise Partnership Board Relationships with Local Partners Relationships with other Local Enterprise Partnerships	15 15 16 16
4.	RESOURCES	17
	Administration Regional Growth Funding European Funding RDA Assets Financial Mechanisms	17 17 17 17 18
5.	SUMMARY OF REQUESTS TO GOVERNMENT	19
	Responsibilities Governance Resources	19 20 21
6.	NEXT STEPS	22
	Timetable	22
	ANNEX	
	Economic Overview Chamber of Commerce Letter of Support List of Statements of Support	22 27 28

## 1. INTRODUCTION

#### 1.1. OUR VISION

- 1.1.1. Our local enterprise partnership is a strong functional economic area at the heart of the country with a combined population of over 2 million. There is a relatively high degree of self-containment, with 90% of the citizens of the two counties living within local employment centre catchments.
- 1.1.2. We aim to create the conditions for future economic prosperity and resilience by harnessing our economic power and complementary strengths through:
  - Building on shared advantages in internationally competitive science, manufacturing, engineering and creative industries, to drive productivity growth as we develop a low carbon economy.
  - Developing our distinctive cultural, leisure, sport and tourism offer to world class standards.
  - Ensuring that the benefits of sustainable economic growth are shared across our cities, towns and rural communities.
  - Developing our skills, building on the strengths and reputation of our first rate FE and HE sector, that will meet and drive up employers' current and future skills demands.
  - Continuing to secure investment in regeneration and infrastructure projects to stimulate private sector growth.
- 1.1.3. These are the areas around which we will develop a sharp vision, SMART objectives and action plan, testing this against our economic assessments over the coming months.

#### 1.2. OUR HISTORY

- 1.2.1 The area shares many defining economic characteristics. There remains a legacy from the decline in manufacturing, such as metals, heavy engineering and textiles, together with the loss of coal mining. In the past, we have successfully managed the transition from traditional industry towards high quality manufacturing, science and R&D, but some challenges still remain.
- 1.2.2. There are some differential patterns across our area and sectors. Derby has experienced a net growth in private sector jobs of 3,200 between 1998 and 2008, contrary to the trend for English cities. Conversely Derby has a low SME start-up and survival rate. There continues to be success stories in Nottingham's science and creative sectors. Parts of the area have a high proportion of public sector employment. Parts of the rural economy are continuing to thrive.
- 1.2.3. We have a strong track record of working in partnership across and within the area:
  - Derbyshire and Nottinghamshire Chamber of Commerce is one of the largest and strongest chambers in the country.
  - Our local Institute of Directors was developed in recognition of a shared economy and business to business relationships that cross our two counties.

- The Ingenuity Knowledge Transfer project is delivered by all three of our universities and links small businesses to the R&D of our universities.
- The Collaborative Higher Education Alliance (CHEA) provides access to higher education opportunities for young people and adults in areas that are not well served by HE institutions.
- Strong local economic partnerships have delivered a range of employment, economic and social benefits to local communities. Some of these partnerships cross the two counties.
- 1.2.4. At the present time, we are developing new integrated ways of working and securing efficiencies, providing a strong platform for our local enterprise partnership.

#### 1.3. OUR FUTURE OPPORTUNITIES

- 1.3.1. We recognise that growth and prosperity cannot be achieved in isolation. Our area has a range of shared assets and complementary strengths and we will build on these to take advantage of opportunities and meet our challenges.
- 1.3.2. Derby has a strong reputation as a vibrant business city specialising in R&D and advanced manufacturing especially in aerospace, nuclear, rail and automotive sectors, employing 12% of Derby's workforce. The city leads the UK in employment in manufacturing technology and export per capita, is home to global brands such as Rolls Royce, Bombardier, Interfleet, CitiBank and Toyota, and is the location for the UK's greatest concentration of nuclear expertise.
- 1.3.3 Nottingham has a strong reputation for business and financial services along with knowledge intensive R&D activity, both in the universities and in business. International business brands include Alliance Boots, Capital One and Experian. Nottingham Science Park is the beneficiary of a recent inward investment success with the establishment of Changan Automobile Company's UK research and development centre.
- 1.3.4 Supply chains, including high value added SMEs, for all key employers straddle our area and help drive excellence in high value manufacturing. The retention and growth of these businesses is critical to our area. Our local enterprise partnership will seek to ensure the benefits are felt across the entire area.
- 1.3.5. Our three high quality universities have over 60,000 students. They are a key driver of innovation, research and the links between these and enterprise. All have an international dimension. The technique of magnetic resonance imaging (MRI) developed by physicists at the University of Nottingham has had a major impact on medical science. The University of Nottingham is also home to the Energy Technologies Research Institute. The University of Derby has a national reputation in HE-employer engagement for higher level workforce development and a significant investment in business incubation support. Nottingham Trent University's Law School is highly regarded for its bespoke legal practice course. Both Nottingham Trent and Derby Universities share an international reputation for fashion and design.
- 1.3.6 The health sector is forecast to be the fastest growing sector in both the UK and across the area. We have strengths in high value health and bioscience R&D,

pharmaceuticals (such as Alliance-Boots, Novartis and Pennine), and the manufacturing of medical technologies. BioCity, based in Nottingham City and launched in 2003, is Europe's largest BioPharma incubator. To date it accommodates 72 knowledge intensive businesses employing over 550 people, and has levered in £27m private sector investment. Whilst the majority of these businesses are pharmaceutical based, many focus on innovative methods of drug delivery which can also be viewed as high value manufacturing.

- 1.3.7 We have world class sporting facilities, such as Trent Bridge, Pride Park Stadium, Nottingham International Tennis Centre, the International Ice Arena and the National Water Sports Centre. These have a track record of attracting international events, which bring economic and promotional benefits, raise aspirations, and increase participation by local people.
- 1.3.8. The Peak District National Park is the most visited national park in the UK. Its impact on the Derbyshire economy is significant, attracting an estimated 36 million visitor each year, and contributing about £1.4bn to the local economy. The opportunities afforded by this world class tourism destination are vast and are complemented by the world renowned Sherwood Forest and Robin Hood legend. We also have the opportunity to further exploit our history and heritage for tourism the Civil War, Pilgrim Fathers, industrial revolution, the enlightenment and other cultural heritage.
- 1.3.9. We have a well developed and globally recognised cultural infrastructure, including the Nottingham Contemporary art gallery, QUAD, the Level Centre and GameCity. We are an increasingly popular location for film production, which has led to an unprecedented growth of the creative digital sector and its supply chain.
- 1.3.10. The rural parts of the area together with market towns and secondary urban centres offer significant growth opportunities, mainly linked to the diversification of the agricultural economy, renewable energy, tourism, the creative industries, enterprise and engineering. We have and will continue to deliver a programme of small commercial sites and facilities to maintain availability in areas of market failure. The redevelopment of a listed building into a new HE campus for Buxton by the University of Derby is an example of the commitment amongst partners to support economic growth in rural areas.
- 1.3.11. Given our industrial heritage we have notable strengths in technician-level skills, with the largest share of Apprenticeships in the East Midlands, and workforce skills are particularly evident at Level 3 reflecting demands from high value manufacturing. There is likely to be a strong future demand for workers with intermediate skills, requiring a shared approach to identifying skills priorities across the area, encouraging further collaboration between key businesses, colleges and other training providers.
- 1.3.12. There are complementarities in the skills required by businesses across the area, particularly in manufacturing and construction. This gives us an opportunity to enable individuals to move between sectors, and the area to retain their skills if either sector is affected by future economic conditions. This flexible approach is a strong example of efficiencies and added value that can be achieved through our local enterprise partnership.

- 1.3.13. Our strong transport infrastructure is key to the area's strategic position at the heart of the country. Road links via the M1/A1 north-south corridors and the A50/A38 east-west corridor are complemented by the area's axis of the national rail network including direct access to London and Europe. East Midlands Airport is the second largest commercial freight hub in the UK.
- 1.3.14. A first rate digital infrastructure is critical for our economic growth. Significant enhancement of this infrastructure will be a key issue for our local enterprise partnership.
- 1.3.15. These examples demonstrate that there is a rich diversity in the area, but that we also have a shared history and share future opportunities. Our shared assets and opportunities provide the bedrock for our local enterprise partnership, working with Government, to stimulate sustainable economic growth.

## 2. **RESPONSIBILITIES**

#### 2.1. CONTEXT

- 2.1.1 We welcome the opportunity for stronger local strategic responsibilities for enterprise and investment, infrastructure and planning, in order that we can make a real difference and help trigger new private sector growth whilst ensuring democratic accountability.
- 2.1.2. The premise throughout is that the local enterprise partnership's Board will provide commercially informed strategic direction. Collaboration across all sectors and delivery agencies will provide a range of functions that achieve our vision and priorities within available resources.
- 2.1.3. The Government has suggested that certain functions may be undertaken nationally, such as international inward investment, sector leadership and elements of business support, national scale innovation projects, and access to finance. Below we set out the responsibilities we wish to take to drive enterprise, and those that we require to ensure central functions are informed by local knowledge to maximise productivity and growth.
- 2.1.4. An over-arching priority in all of our activities will be to encourage the development and adoption of low carbon techniques, and particularly their application to sustainable and renewable energy. This will create business efficiency and generate economic opportunities for rural areas.
- 2.1.5 In the following sections we set out the areas of activity where we wish to take a lead or contribute, why we believe a role for the partnership is imperative, what we intend to do and what we are asking the Government to do to maximise our effectiveness.

#### 2.2. ENTERPRISE, INNOVATION AND SECTOR SUPPORT

- 2.2.1. Growing enterprise and accelerating the growth of existing businesses is a priority in our area. The strong sectors and the range of enterprise support, linked to the strengths of our universities, will enable us to make the most of innovation to improve productivity and business efficiency, as well as developing this approach through the strengthening of supply chains.
- 2.2.2. Our Board will deliver and monitor the overall enterprise support framework containing cross-cutting themes for innovation and the low carbon economy. This will include an overview of partners' commissioning activity to share best practice and encourage co-operation where appropriate.
- 2.2.3. Our partnership welcomes the Government's commitment to simplify business and enterprise support. We will supplement any national provision with local enterprise support with a focus on pre-start, micro-level new start and areas of greatest opportunity, where local knowledge can add the most value. Subject to resources, we are keen to explore opportunities for enterprise coaching and mentoring programmes and promoting social enterprise.

- 2.2.4. We wish to take a leading role in the delivery of innovation and sector support programmes, commissioning services where particular gaps in provision or specific opportunities arise. We wish to build on existing innovation network activity, and proactively develop the concept of innovation hubs around our university specialisms and our incubation centres. We recognise that there may be scope to manage more effectively our innovation centres, and that innovation and enterprise must be supported by improvements in scope and capacity of the broadband network.
- 2.2.5. We would welcome opportunities to influence the Government's model for business support. For example, we want this to include specific programmes such as the Manufacturing Advisory Service and innovation and sectoral initiatives, with an option to commission and deliver at a local level so that the particular strengths of the sectors can be harnessed. We also need a clear point of liaison to feed in local information, direct businesses to the national offer and have access to national management information to help inform our business planning. We wish to retain a share of resource for supplementary schemes. We would welcome an early dialogue with the Government regarding the RDA's equity stakes, intellectual property and legacy of support for local innovation.

#### 2.3. INWARD INVESTMENT AND TRADE

- 2.3.1. The attraction of new investment and trade into areas from within the UK and abroad will be key to rebalancing local economies, moving out of recession and is a core part of our vision. Local input is critical to meet the needs of new and existing investors. We offer knowledge, existing well-developed commercial, academic and civic networks, and understanding of the distinct offer of our different locations. We are also the best placed to link investment activities to strategic infrastructure improvements.
- 2.3.2. The Board will coherently strategically commission and coordinate promotional activity and recommend tactical campaigns. The local enterprise partnership will co-ordinate, focus and integrate its activities with those of UKTI and ensure meaningful support and aftercare for local major employers. It will also seek to identify new opportunities afforded by this collaborative approach (e.g. the M1 corridor and a two cities corridor in addition to rural and brownfield locations) and look to existing businesses in the area to champion these.
- 2.3.3. We welcome the Government's intent to create closer, cost effective links between international promotional and export expertise, but there is a real need to fully understand the potential of our priority sectors and local business for export and where their potential future markets are. It is essential that our strong working relationship with UKTI is maintained, including their engagement in our overseas activity in key markets and sectors. We will utilise the private sector expertise on the Board to raise awareness of the importance of and commercial opportunities arising from international trade.
- 2.3.4. In order to ensure that we can effectively undertake this role we want to engage with the Government to shape the national approach to investment activity. We also ask that any successor arrangements to RDAs include the retention of a UK presence in Europe, USA, China, India and other emerging economies, and we welcome the means to feed into and access this service. We recognise that this

cannot be provided efficiently by local enterprise partnerships, but urgently ask to enter into discussions with the Government about possible cross-local enterprise partnership arrangements.

#### 2.4. PROMOTION AND TOURISM

- 2.4.1. The visitor economy forms a significant part of our local economy and the profile of businesses in the area including a large proportion of micro and small businesses. It is a growing sector and one that could benefit from working across a wider geography, informed by local expertise.
- 2.4.2. The Board will inform the overall strategic direction for the area, and we will seek efficiencies from current arrangements in place. Subject to funding and further discussions with partners we consider local private sector led partnerships to be a good model going forward. Business engagement suggests the following priorities for consideration by the Board: creating or managing quality standards; strengthening promotional campaigns and support for the leisure visitor; and improving market intelligence and understanding of consumer behaviour to inform investment decisions.
- 2.4.3 We have a rich variety of offers for visitors ranging from countryside and heritage (e.g. Chatsworth) to sport (e.g. Test Matches). Our central location and this quality offer must be maximised. We will work with neighbouring local enterprise partnerships and national agencies such as Visit England to promote these opportunities. Cross local enterprise partnership boundary working could include linkages to the Olympic training base at Loughborough and the National Football Academy at Rangemoor.
- 2.4.4. We wish to assist Government in shaping measures to reorganise and rationalise the bodies which currently support cultural and leisure activities.

#### 2.5. EMPLOYMENT AND SKILLS

- 2.5.1. Skills levels are a key consideration of any new investor. Improving skills is critical to meeting business needs and raising productivity, including by increasing employment. Our partnership presents new opportunities to explore the links between our complementary sectors and further grow apprenticeships and technician level skills.
- 2.5.2. Our Board will develop a strategy based on the solid foundations created over the last two years to understand the services needed to provide employers with the workforce they need and create informed learners. The partnership will work with employers, providers, sector specialists and national agencies to determine what should be commissioned and evaluate what works, and ensure this is integrated into the 14-19 provision. Initial priorities would be to extend and deepen engagement between business sectors and training providers, create a comprehensive ladder of opportunities for apprenticeships across all NVQ levels and ensure young people are work ready. The partnership will work closely with our universities and colleges to increase higher level skills to promote the STEM agenda. We will seek to bridge the gap between school based advice and guidance and adult advancement.

- 2.5.3. To deliver improvements, we request that any national funding agency decisions be informed by our Board's priorities. We welcome immediate engagement with the Government to determine any strategic economic and skills research required to supplement national and local research.
- 2.5.4. We ask the Government to enable us to build on what has been successful. To achieve this we need to establish a formal relationship with DWP across all its programmes of activity (including its local delivery arrangements such as Jobcentre Plus). This includes the City Strategy pathfinder initiative in Nottingham which we wish to expand further, enabling co-commissioning between local authorities and Jobcentre Plus across the area. We also ask that the reorganisation of local Jobcentre Plus districts reflects our partnership geography boundary, as well as Work Programmes contracts, and that the partnership is able to influence the tendering for and award of these. We want national resource allocations to reflect the business needs articulated in our local Skills Priority Statement.

#### 2.6. INFRASTRUCTURE AND PLANNING, INCLUDING HOUSING

- 2.6.1. Infrastructure remains a critical enabler of private sector growth. Local business knowledge is vital to informing priorities that will lever investment and this, together with democratic accountability, offers a powerful driver for growth.
- 2.6.2. Our Board will set the strategic business context for and co-ordinate the alignment between planning, transportation and other major infrastructure provision, including digital. It will be the mechanism for capturing business requirements and give an economic perspective on whether the focus of relevant Local Investment Plans, Local Transport Plans and Local Development Frameworks will maximise the achievement of their economic objectives and lever private sector investment.
- 2.6.3. The responsibility for delivery of strategic infrastructure and site development will remain with county, city and district councils. Democratic accountability must remain a key tenet of planning and the Board will not assume or seek to assume the statutory responsibility of local authorities. Our partnership will provide the necessary evidence to inform the preparation of core strategies and local transport and other investment plans. It will encourage alignment of these, inform resource deployment across the area and could seek to inform future growth nodes and associated infrastructure improvements. The partnership is expected to have an influential role in pan-LEP decisions affecting transport and other infrastructure issues, including involvement with bodies such as the Highways Agency and Environment Agency.
- 2.6.4. We welcome the opportunity to engage with DfT to identify national transport infrastructure priorities. We will continually promote sustainable transport solutions to deliver the transition to a low carbon economy. Our partnership will also take a role in influencing the prioritisation between neighbouring partnerships and with the Government over, for instance, planning for airport expansions, major rail infrastructure investments and future road programmes, including the existing business priorities of the Midland Mainline. The partnership will want to promote quickly the improvement of the scope and capacity of existing broadband infrastructure.

- 2.6.5. With regard to housing growth in particular, existing structures involving the Homes and Communities Agency and district councils are working well in coordinating separate elements of local and wider policy. We would wish to build on existing approaches as we recognise the importance of democratic accountability and variances in local infrastructure requirements. However, we will look at scope for the Board to have an overview of the development and implementation of Local Investment Plans in consultation with the HCA, within a strategic framework underpinned by a strong evidence base. The partnership provides an opportunity for business advice to and greater alignment between local authorities, co-ordinating and endorsing Local Investment Plans.
- 2.6.6. To maximise success we want a transparent route to make a case for our pressing investment priorities, accompanied by the financial tools required to sustain investment. There are existing improvements that we want the Government to prioritise via our local enterprise partnership, along with improved coverage and capacity of digital infrastructure.

## 3. GOVERNANCE

#### 3.1. PRINCIPLES

- 3.1.1. The organisations supporting our local enterprise partnership are committed to a governance arrangement that is functional and lean. Business expects to see efficient structures with clear lines of accountability and minimal bureaucracy. We will ensure that all existing arrangements are reviewed and amended or rationalised where appropriate.
- 3.1.2. Our local enterprise partnership will be centred on a private sector led Board that drives the high level economic prosperity of our area by:
  - being a strong influential voice for the area and a conduit between the Government and our area;
  - providing an integrated framework for, and leading on, targeted interventions to boost private sector growth across priority sectors with potential;
  - ensuring that all of our interventions help to deliver investment and reduce the area's dependence on public sector employment and declining traditional industries.
- 3.1.3. We will not be a direct deliverer of economic development services but will provide a framework for delivery by a range of organisations across all sectors.

#### 3.2 OUR LOCAL ENTERPRISE PARTNERSHIP BOARD

- 3.2.1. The Board will have a private sector majority and chair with representation from local authorities and the universities. Board members will act as champions for the core elements of our local enterprise partnership's vision. Derbyshire and Nottinghamshire Chamber of Commerce will play a key role by bringing the wider business voice to the Board. We will seek private sector Board members who can champion:
  - Science, manufacturing and commercialisation
  - Culture, sport and tourism
  - Rural and market towns
  - Skills
  - Regeneration and strategic infrastructure
  - Small and medium sized enterprises (SMEs)
- 3.2.2. We will establish a shadow Board by November 2010, at which point it will meet and select its Chair and Vice Chair. To ensure sufficient private sector representation we are currently in discussion with local business leaders, the Chamber of Commerce, the Federation of Small Businesses and the Institute of Directors.
- 3.2.3 Terms of reference are being drafted which will reflect the principles described. This will include the members' roles and responsibilities to the local enterprise partnership.
- 3.2.4. We are exploring options for the legal constitution of the partnership.

3.2.5. In order that our proposals are effective, we need autonomy for the Board, with minimal criteria and audit arrangements to ensure that creativity and risk-taking are not stifled.

#### 3.3 RELATIONSHIPS WITH LOCAL PARTNERS

- 3.3.1. We are committed to continue engaging with all key organisations and partners in an open and transparent way and will ensure that the mechanisms for doing this are balanced against our efforts to rationalise existing structures. We have already secured support from the District Councils within Nottinghamshire through their engagement on the Joint Leadership Board and Core Cities Board, a partnership of local authorities, the private sector, universities, FE colleges and the voluntary sector working together to promote economic development in Nottingham and Nottinghamshire, its people and businesses. The private sector in Derbyshire has given its wholehearted support for the local enterprise partnership and through the Derbyshire Economic Partnership the district councils have endorsed the proposal subject to arrangements for their engagement being clarified.
- 3.3.2. We are also keen to outline quickly our proposed approach to engaging the voluntary sector and principal providers such as JobCentre Plus. Our current landscape offers ample opportunity to engage these main partners on a regular basis and we will seek to formalise this in any new partnership arrangements.

#### 3.4. RELATIONSHIPS WITH OTHER LOCAL ENTERPRISE PARTNERSHIPS

- 3.4.1. We are committed to being flexible and responding pro-actively to opportunities with other local enterprise partnerships. This will involve taking advantage of natural synergies to ensure close working with Lincolnshire to the east, Manchester and Birmingham to the west and Sheffield to the north. Opportunities generated by Robin Hood Airport will also be explored with South Yorkshire, along with Loughborough University and East Midlands Airport with Leicestershire.
- 3.4.2. We will also ensure that there is collaboration with other partnerships with common sectoral or infrastructure interests. However we will also stress the integrity of our area and its importance as a functional economic area, which has been confirmed by support from key private sector employers.

## 4. **RESOURCES**

#### 4.1. **ADMINISTRATION**

- 4.1.1. In developing our proposal our overarching principle has been to create a lean and functional structure, minimising costs and maximising the use of existing partner resources to deliver business growth and job creation.
- 4.1.2. At this stage existing partner resources will be utilised through service level agreements to undertake any functions or secretarial support that may be required by the Board.

#### 4.2. **REGIONAL GROWTH FUND**

4.2.1. We are submitting a coordinated response to the Government's consultation on RGF. We expect to play a lead role in the coordination of RGF bids. We will work with local businesses, universities and social enterprises to develop proposals that will contribute to our shared vision and address our agreed local economic priorities. We hope that proposals that have our support will be preferred by the Government.

#### 4.3 EUROPEAN FUNDING

4.3.1. We have been a substantial beneficiary of European funding and have an ongoing funded programme until 2013. There is a need to retain the expertise in administering these complex schemes, and provide consistency for the funding organisations. We believe that the Government should manage the administration of EU regional programme on behalf of those local enterprise partnerships with ongoing commitments but we recognise there are benefits for businesses to have local access to these expertise and are willing to consider hosting arrangements. As with our proposals on the RGF, we believe that the primary role of the Board should be to support the development and coordination of bids to eligible European funding streams, as it is ideally placed to oversee the formulation of combined funding packages and lever in private sector match funding.

#### 4.4. RDA ASSETS

- 4.4.1. Through their acquisition of key development sites, RDAs currently possess many capital assets that could be utilised by local enterprise partnerships for business development and job creation within their areas.
- 4.4.2. Our intention is to acquire the use of strategic sites that could be used for economic development or employment purposes. As the Board may not have any formal legal status, we would propose that any assets which are transferred from the RDA would be held by the County, City, District Councils or other local organisations.
- 4.4.3. We therefore request further discussions with the Government over the transfer of key strategic sites that would have maximum development potential at minimum cost.

#### 4.5. FINANCIAL MECHANISMS

- 4.5.1. Although the RGF will provide an element of public sector funding required in addressing underlying structural economic problems, we are already exploring alternative financing mechanisms which can be used to enable future regeneration and infrastructure projects to proceed.
- 4.5.2. We are looking to identify ways in which existing and future regeneration schemes could be financed through leveraged private sector investment. These include hypothecated taxation, asset backed vehicles, Business Improvement Districts (BIDs) and accelerated development zones as well as a recently established Regeneration Fund to invest in commercial schemes, designed to be self-

sustaining. We would look to this review to inform the Board as to appropriate mechanisms and await further guidance on the Government's preferred approach in the Sub-National Growth White Paper. The Board would then provide the conduit by which to share best practice and provide guidance on how innovative finance can be used to pump prime schemes and complement public funding.

## 5. Summary of Requests to Government

#### 5.1. **RESPONSIBILITIES**

#### 5.1.1. Enterprise, Innovation and Sector Support

- Subject to resources and to add complementarity to national programmes, we are keen to explore opportunities for enterprise coaching and mentoring programmes and promoting social enterprise.
- We wish to take a leading role in the delivery of innovation and sector support programmes, commissioning services where particular gaps in provision or specific opportunities arise.
- We wish to build on existing innovation network activity, and proactively develop the concept of innovation hubs around our university specialisms and our incubation centres.
- We would welcome opportunities to influence the Government's model for business support. For example, we want this to include specific programmes such as the Manufacturing Advisory Service and innovation and sectoral initiatives, with an option to commission and deliver at a local level so that the particular strengths of the sectors can be harnessed.
- We also need a clear point of liaison to feed in local information, direct businesses to the national business support offer and have access to national management information to help inform our business planning. We wish to retain a share of resource for supplementary schemes.
- We would welcome an early dialogue with the Government regarding the RDA's equity stakes, intellectual property and legacy of support for local innovation.

#### 5.1.2. Inward Investment and Trade

- We are keen for the local enterprise partnership Board to strategically commission and coordinate promotional activity for inward investment, working seamlessly with UKTI.
- In order to ensure that we can effectively undertake this role we want to engage with the Government to shape the national approach to investment activity.
- We also ask that any successor arrangements to RDAs include the retention of a UK presence in Europe, USA, China, India and other emerging economies, and we welcome the means to feed into and access this service. We recognise that this cannot be provided efficiently by local enterprise partnerships, but urgently ask to enter into discussions with the Government about possible cross-local enterprise partnership arrangements.

#### 5.1.3. Promotion and Tourism

- We wish to assist the Government in shaping measures to reorganise and rationalise the bodies which currently support cultural and leisure activities.
- We wish to work closely with VisitEngland and other national bodies to promote our area for tourism related activity and promotion.
# 5.1.4. Employment and Skills

- To deliver improvements, we request that any national funding agency decisions be informed by our Board's priorities. We welcome immediate engagement with the Government to determine any strategic economic and skills research required to supplement national and local research.
- We ask the Government to enable us to build on what has been successful. To achieve this we need to establish a formal relationship with DWP across all its programmes of activity (including its local delivery arrangements such as Jobcentre Plus). This includes the City Strategy pathfinder initiative in Nottingham which we wish to expand further, enabling co-commissioning between local authorities and Jobcentre Plus across the area.
- We also ask that the re-organisation of local Jobcentre Plus districts reflects our partnership geography boundary, as well as Work Programmes contracts, and that the partnership is able to influence the tendering for and award of these.
- We want national resource allocations to reflect the business needs articulated in our local Skills Priority Statement.

# 5.1.5. Infrastructure and Planning, Including Housing

- We welcome the opportunity to engage with DfT to identify national transport infrastructure priorities.
- We want a transparent route to make a case for our pressing investment priorities, accompanied by the financial tools required to sustain investment. There are existing improvements that we want the Government to prioritise via our local enterprise partnership, along with improved coverage and capacity of digital infrastructure.

# 5.2. GOVERNANCE

• In order that our governance proposals are effective, we need autonomy for our Board, with minimal criteria and audit arrangements to ensure that creativity and risk-taking are not stifled.

# 5.3. RESOURCES

### 5.3.1 Regional Growth Fund

• We request that the Government prioritises RGF proposals which have the support of our local enterprise partnership.

### 5.3.2. European Funding

• We believe that the Government should manage the administration of the EU regional programme on behalf of those local enterprise partnerships with ongoing commitments. We recognise that there are benefits to businesses to have local access to those expertise and are willing to consider hosting arrangements.

# 5.3.3. RDA Assets

- We would propose that any assets, which are transferred from the RDA, are held by the County, City, District Councils or other local organisations.
- We request further discussions with the Government over the transfer of key strategic sites that would have maximum development potential at minimum cost.

# 6. NEXT STEPS

# 6.1. TIMETABLE

6.1.1. Our indicative timeline for work associated with establishing our local enterprise partnership, subject to feedback on this proposal and subsequent growth White Papers, is as follows:

Year	Month	Action / deliverable			
	Sept	Submission of local enterprise partnership proposal			
		Government response on proposal			
		Finalisation of Board appointments process			
	Oct	Shadow Board members selected			
		Partners approval of delivery plan for establishment of a local enterprise partnership			
2010	Nov				
2010	NOV	First shadow board meeting; terms of reference and work plan agreed. Chair elected.			
		Regional Growth Fund proposals developed			
		Scope and timetable agreed for review and			
		rationalisation of existing governance arrangements			
	Dec	Board approves Regional Growth Fund application			
		for submission			
	Feb	Decision expected on RGF application			
2011	April	Implementation of recommendations on pre-existing			
		governance arrangements commences			
	Sept	Shadow Board meets – formal transition of			
		responsibilities from Regional Development Agency			
	Nov	Full Board invested			

# ANNEX: ECONOMIC OVERVIEW

# Geography and Demography

Derby, Derbyshire, Nottingham and Nottinghamshire, (DDNN) has a central location in England and is served by a number of key north-south transport links, such as the M1 motorway and the Midlands Mainline. The area contains two large cities, in Derby and Nottingham and a number of smaller centres that serve rural hinterlands. Due to the scale and economic importance of the Nottingham conurbation, it has been designated as one of England's eight Core Cities.

The area had an estimated total population of just over 2.07 million in 2008. The cities of Derby and Nottingham are more densely populated and tend to have younger populations than the surrounding counties. Significant growth in the population of DDNN (of 7.5%) is projected between 2010 and 2020.

### Economy and Business

Total gross value added (GVA) in DDNN was almost £37 billion in 2007. GVA per head was £17,400, which is 87% of the UK average. This proportion has been relatively stable in recent years.

In 2009 there were over 62,000 VAT or PAYE registered businesses in DDNN. The number of businesses is higher in the cities than in surrounding districts. The coalfield area to the north of the two counties has fewer businesses. Derbyshire has around one fifth of all Production Sector businesses in the East Midlands and includes nationally significant strengths in transport equipment. Key employers include large multinational businesses such as Toyota, Rolls-Royce and Bombardier.

In 2008 there were 54 business births per 10,000 adult population in the UK. The rate of business births is generally lower than this average in the DDNN. Districts in the north of the area, such as Bolsover, Chesterfield, Mansfield and Ashfield, have particularly low business birth rates, of under 40 per 10,000 adult population.

# **Employment and Unemployment**

Levels of labour market participation in DDNN tend to be higher in the two counties than in the cities. Employment rates in Derbyshire and Nottinghamshire are above the national average, at 78% and 75% respectively (compared to the UK figure of 71%). However this does mask significant pockets of worklessness in the north of our area, where the decline of coal mining and traditional manufacturing has left concentrations of inter-generational unemployment, high levels of deprivation and low skills. Employment rates are lower in the cities, but particularly low in Nottingham City (59%, compared to 72% in Derby City).

The recession has had an impact as employment has fallen and unemployment has increased. Unemployment, as measured by the claimant count, was 5.2% in Nottingham and 4.5% in Derby in July 2010. These figures are significantly above the UK average of 3.6%. Unemployment is lower in the counties, at 2.9% in Nottinghamshire and 3.1% in Derbyshire. These figures are, however, slightly lower than a year ago as modest economic recovery has begun.

There are a number of notable differences between the employment structure of DDNN and its constituent areas and the rest of the country:

- Manufacturing accounts for around 15% of total employment in DDNN, compared to just less than 10% in Great Britain. Within DDNN manufacturing is particularly important in Derby and Derbyshire where it accounts for almost one fifth of total employment;
- Construction is more important in DDNN than nationally, and particularly in the counties, where it accounts for between 6% and 7% of total employment;
- The share of employment accounted for by market services in DDNN is lower than the national average. However, within DDNN Nottinghamshire has an above average share of employment in retail (11.1% compared to 10.5% nationally) and Nottingham has a significantly higher than average share of employment in business administration and support services (12.4% of total employment compared to 8.2% nationally); and
- Public sector activity accounts for a slightly larger share of employment in DDNN than nationally. Within DDNN, public sector activity accounts for around 38% of employment in Nottingham (compared to 31.5% for Great Britain). This suggests that Nottingham may be more vulnerable to cuts in public spending than other areas with DDNN.

In terms of occupations that people work in Nottingham and Derby cities both have higher proportions employed as Managers and Senior Officials and in Professional Occupations. Those working in the Skilled Trades account for a higher proportion of employment in both Derbyshire and Derby City, reflecting strong employment in manufacturing in that part of DDNN.

# Skills

It tends to be the case that skills are higher in the counties rather than the cities in DDNN. In part this is because of commuting patterns (explored in more detail below) in which those in higher paid, higher skilled jobs live in the counties and commute into the cities.

- Low skills are a particular challenge for Nottingham City. In 2008, the percentage of the workforce qualified to Level 4 and above was 25%, compared to the average of 31% for England, whilst the percentage of resident adults lacking a Level 2 qualification was 37% (compared to 31% in England).<sup>1</sup>
- Similar issues apply to those parts of DDNN previously dominated by coal mining and traditional industries.
- The skills profile elsewhere in DDNN is much higher, but still below the English average. In Nottinghamshire and Derby City, the proportion of adults qualified to Level 4 or above was 29%.
- Intermediate level skills are particularly strong in Derbyshire, with 69% of resident adults qualified to at least a Level 2 (the same as England), and Nottinghamshire, with 48% qualified to at least a Level 3 (compared to 50% in England). This reflects the demand for skills in the Skilled Trades in Manufacturing and Construction.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup> ONS Crown Copyright, 'Annual Population Survey', 2001-2008,

http://www.thedataservice.org.uk/statistics/sfrdec09/sfr\_dec09\_labour\_force\_tables.htm Note: Without Level 2 qualification is the sum of those with lower than Level 2 and those with no qualification. Adults aged 19-59/64.

• The participation rate of 16-17 year olds in Apprenticeships was highest in the East Midlands in Derby and Nottinghamshire, at 11% and 9% respectively, compared to 7% in the region overall.

A number of factors will influence the demand for skills in DDNN in the future. These will include technological changes, and those associated with the transition to a low carbon economy, and regulatory change. These drivers of change are expected to have significant impacts in construction and manufacturing, both strengths within DDNN.

# Commuting

The 2001 Census allows for an assessment of net commuting and outflows and inflows at district level within the DDNN. It should also be noted that there are significant commuting flows between DDNN and Sheffield (in Yorkshire and the Humber) and East Staffordshire (in the West Midlands), a reflection of the central location of DDNN within the UK.

As the largest urban areas in the DDNN, Nottingham and Derby experience net incommuting. The scale of net in-commuting varies significantly though. There is net incommuting of over 70,000 in Nottingham and around 15,000 in Derby. Out-commuting tends to be highest from those districts that surround the two cities: Broxtowe (-16,000), Rushcliffe (-16,100), North East Derbyshire (-17,100) and Gedling (-21,300).

# Earnings

Earnings are dependent upon a number of factors, including nature of employment (by industry and occupation) and skills. Variations between workplace and residence based earnings can be pronounced at sub-regional level. The region's major economic centres all have higher workplace than residence based earnings, indicative of in-commuting into Nottingham and Derby described above.

Derby has the highest workplace based earnings in the East Midlands at £574.9 which can be explained by the relatively high proportion of skilled engineering jobs in the city. In contrast, workplace based earnings in Derbyshire and Nottinghamshire are somewhat below the national average.

# Deprivation and Economic Disadvantage

Area-based analyses highlight that the most deprived LSOAs (as measured by the index of deprivation) of DDNN are concentrated around the cities of Derby and Nottingham, and the Mansfield, Ashfield, Bassetlaw, Chesterfield and Bolsover areas previously dominated by declining traditional industries.

The economic challenge of the former coalfields area is well established<sup>2</sup>. Communities in the coalfields area tend to have higher numbers of people on incapacity benefit and in other forms of inactivity. In addition, due to the recession, where inter-generational unemployment is already an issue, some communities may face further difficulties in getting into work or maintaining their labour market position.

The labour market challenges posed by a highly stable, largely homogeneous population experiencing inter-generational unemployment in a former coalfield area are quite different

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>2</sup> For example, the Coalfields Regeneration Trust, changing the face of coalfield communities <u>http://www.coalfields-regen.org.uk/default.asp</u>

from those of an ethnically diverse, younger and more transient population living in an inner-city area<sup>3</sup>.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>3</sup> Marilyn Taylor, Joseph Rowntree Foundation 'Transforming disadvantaged places: Effective strategies for places and people', 2008. <u>http://www.jrf.org.uk/knowledge/findings/housing/pdf/2255.pdf</u>

# ANNEX: CHAMBER OF COMMERCE LETTER OF SUPPORT



Derbyshire and Nottinghamshire Chamber of Commerce



Commerce Centre Canal Wharf Chesterfield S41 7NA Tel: 01246 207207 Fax: 01246 233228 Email: information@dncc.co.uk Web: www.dncc.co.uk Our Ref: DGC/IM/DNCC/LEP

26 August 2010

Harvey Jennings, Leader, Derby City Council Andrew Lewer, Derbyshire County Council Jon Collins, Leader, Nottingham City Council Kay Cutts, Leader, Nottinghamshire County Council

Dear All

#### LOCAL ENTERPRISE PARTNERSHIP DERBY, DERBYSHIRE, NOTTINGHAM, NOTTINGHAMSHIRE

Derbyshire and Nottinghamshire Chamber of Commerce (DNCC) is the third largest Chamber in the country and has 3,300 full Members and a further 7,000 affiliates. It is the largest business representative organisation in the two counties of Derbyshire and Nottinghamshire.

Members have debated the possibility of setting up a new Local Enterprise Partnership and have strongly expressed the view that they want it to be effective in assisting companies strengthen the local economy. They therefore have been keen to see it have reasonable scale, resources and vision.

The Chamber has enthusiastically supported the creation of a single Local Enterprise Partnership for Derbyshire and Nottinghamshire believing that it will be fit for purpose and will promote the economic development of two vibrant and dynamic cities and counties.

I therefore write on behalf of Chamber Members to fully endorse the proposals for a Derbyshire and Nottinghamshire Local Enterprise Partnership and I attach a list of Members and other organisations who have written to us wanting to demonstrate their support for this proposal.

Yours sincerely

earge Curle

George Cowcher DIRECTOR & CHIEF EXECUTIVE



# ANNEX: LIST OF STATEMENTS OF SUPPORT

COMPANY/REPRESENTATIVE	NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES	LOCATION
Andrew Mair, Chief Executive, Midlands Aerospace Alliance	10	<u>Coventry</u>
Perry Bebbington, Director, SEP Solutions Ltd	1	Nottingham
Sue Higton, Business Development Director, Hullabaloo	9	Loughborough
Visual Communications Ltd Graham Paskett, Paskett Public Relations Limited	9	Derby
Chris Banks, Managing Director, Eurotech Environmental Limited	12	Newark
Graham Fenton, Managing Director, Integrated Computer Utilities Ltd	6	Derby
Brian Conway MCIPR, Head of Government & Industry Affairs, MAG Regional Airports (East Midlands, Bournemouth & Humberside)	250	Castle Donington
Shaun Esden, Director, Aztec360 Limited	1	Nottingham
Rob Squire ACII, Finance and Compliance Manager, Routen Chaplin	32	Nottingham
Charlotte Gilbert, Director, Road Clothing Ltd	14	Bakewell
Tim Waller, Eyam Domiciliary Service Ltd	19	Hope Valley
Tim Waller, Eyam Holidays	1	Hope Valley
Terry Lines, Managing Director, PTL Occupational Hygiene Consultants Ltd	18	Nottingham
Paul Gayton, Wren Accountancy Services Limited	4	Nottingham
Mike Hunter, CEO, betterlanguages.com Ltd	2	Nottingham
Gillian Pearson, GPA Ltd	4	Ashbourne
Brad Buchanan, Rockside Export, Fasco Gulf UK Ltd	1	Lincoln
Kevin Davenport, The Whole Kaboodle	5	Derby
Brendan Ashmore, Park Cleaning Services	1	Nottingham
Richard Warren, Motifs	1	Nottingham
Mike Watson, Director, Giant Impact Limited	1	Buxton
James Reeves, Chief Executive, Technology18	1	Nottingham
Steve Potts, Director, Andante (UK) Ltd	1	Nottingham
Richard Gutteridge, Managing Director, Open Projects Ltd.	1	Nottingham
Ron Glen, General Manager Notts Construction Forum, Ron Glen Management Services	1	Nottingham

Sue Brittain, Finance Director, Perspektiv	38	Nottingham
Group, Integrated Marketing	00	rotangnann
Sughra Khaliq, Managing Director,	2	Derby
AMEERAH, Designer-wear for		, ,
Professionals		
Kevin Palmer, Kevin Palmer Media	1	Derby
Services		
Adam Harris, Chief Executive Officer,	1	Royston, Herts
Technology Channels Association		_
Philip Angus, Manager, Nottingham	6	Nottingham
Energy Partnership		
Gwyn Watkins, Sales Manager Lhoist UK	74	Buxton
Limited		
Tony Frith, Commercial Operations	42	Loughborough
Manager, on365™		
Barry Goodwin, Managing Director, Web	8	High Peak
Processing (M/C) Ltd		
Sue Smith, Specialist Team Sales	400	Nottingham
Manager, RFindel Education		
Heather Mellors, Mitchells Chartered	35	Chesterfield
Accountants & Business Advisers		
John Kenworthy, Kenworthy & Co	1	Chesterfield
Julian Hall MBA, Director, Beating Anger	1	Derby
Derby		
Peter A. Swan, Peter Swan Associates	1	Ripley
Elizabeth Hayworth, Derwent Law	1	Derby
Helen Capewell, JMC Service & Repair	3	Sutton-in-Ashfield
Suzy Ackroyd, Office Manager, Massers	48	Nottingham
Solicitors		
Andrew Gibson, Managing Director,	8	Nottingham
Airport Bearing Company Limited		
Said Chabane, Managing Director, East	2	Nottingham
West UK Ltd	500	
Robert Moyle, Chairman & Chief	500	Sutton-in-Ashfield
Executive, North Midland Construction PLC		
	0	Chesterfield
T W McGregor, OMA Contracts Ltd Kate Lee, Principal, Kate Lee	<u> </u>	Derby
Communications	I	Derby
David Drakes	1	Nottingham
	3	Chesterfield
Andy Goodwin, Director, UKeye Ltd	399	
Iain Blatherwick, Managing Partner, Browne Jacobson LLP	399	Nottingham
Tony Brooks, Building Bridges	1	Nottingham
Development Services	I	roungnan
Gwen Palmer, Invisible Communications	1	Newark
Ray Butterworth, Hon. Sec., Association	1	Nottingham
of Nottinghamshire Private Hire Operators	I	roungnan
& Drivers		
Dr David Orton, Quality Six Sigma Ltd	1	Nottingham
Paul Jeffels, 23 Skidoo Ltd	3	Derby
	0	Deny

Terry O'Mahony, Director, Larchwood	1	Nottingham
Construction & Marketing	I	Nottingnam
Dirk Terjung, BADOT Limited	1	Stainton by Langworth
Tim Vernon, HR Manager-Nottingham	800	Nottingham
Manufacturing, Imperial Tobacco		itottingnam
Peter Bartlett, Marketing Manager, JET	12	Derby
(Jobs Education Training)		,
David Short, Chairman, Clegg Group Ltd	124	Nottingham
Steve Wakeling, Chief Executive,	1	Nottingham
Independent Business Association East		č
Midlands		
Phil Downing, Copernicus	1	Manchester
John Kelly, Director and Ray Newell,	2	Ilkeston
Consultant - Oakwell Management		
Services		
Ian Morgan, Deputy Chairman, Wellglade	1200	Heanor, Derbyshire
Peter Jessop, Chief Executive, The	40+ Members	Ripley
Derbyshire Network	_	
Dave Reynolds, Belvoir Nottingham West	6	Bulwell
Trevor Harris, President, Nottingham City	200 Member	Nottingham
Business Club	businesses	
Trevor Harris, Director, Pedigree	1	Nottingham
Automotive Solutions Ltd		Deuleusking
Neale Lewis, Business and Executive	1	Derbyshire
Coach, ActionCOACH	22	Nettingham
Steve Midgley, Managing Director, Fairgrove Homes Ltd	22	Nottingham
Emma Buckle, Domiciliary Care Manager,	3	Derby
Blay Care Services	5	Derby
Ian McGregor, Director, Peak Change	1	Chesterfield
Limited	•	Chostomola
Gemma Crammond, UK Mediation	5	Belper
Theresa Jones, Administrator, Wytech	5	Derby
John Buchanan, Rothera Dowson	88	Nottingham
Steve Byram, Nottingham Forest FC	5	Nottingham
Rob Shaw, Principle, Office Angels	8	Nottingham
Sue Higton, Director, Hullabaloo	9	Loughborough
Richard Carlyle-Smith, Director,	2	Nottingham
Ricochet Creative		č
Nathan Vowles, Executive Director, The	1	Derby
Utility Warehouse Discount Club		-
Phil Hughes, Printing.com	3 5	Nottingham
Sarah Belcham, Managing Director,	5	Nottingham
Cleaning Team		
Paul Eadson, I O M Consultancy Ltd	10	Chesterfield
Matt Wheatcroft, Managing Director,	6	Mansfield
Purpose Media		
Joe Fensome, V M S	21	Leicester
Andrew Talbot, Director, bNetCentre	8	Matlock
Matt Dawes, Askecoman	1	Langley Mill
Robin Eyre, Utility Warehouse	1	Matlock

Amy lefferice Marketing Manager	14	Durton
Amy Jefferies, Marketing Manager,	14	Burton
Smarter Ways	0	Manafield
Glen Wood, Stopford Associates	8	Mansfield
James Luxton, Planet Payroll	6	Nottingham
Janette Godfrey, Director, TBAT	ю	Derby
Marketing	1	Nottingham
Gary Frith, Director, Alchemy 7	2	Nottingham Nottingham
Mark Joyner, Director, My V book	2	Ilkeston
Tina Clough, Poppy PR		
Tom Kirtley, Nelsons Solicitors	140	Nottingham
Richard Brewster, Head of Business	52	Derby
Solutions, Smith Cooper	r -	Netting the tree
Philip Wort, Director, CDG Financial	5	Nottingham
Services Ltd	10	Notting the pro-
Katy Warner, Sales Director, Solutions	12	Nottingham
for Accounting	4	Notting the pro-
James Gaunt, Director, Web Fuel Ltd	1	Nottingham
Nancy Weir, Customer Plus	10	Derby
Rob Ogilvie, CPS Interiors	11	Loughborough
M N Cook, Managing Director, AM	2	Nottingham
Receivables	00	
Martin Bennett, Regional Account	20	Nottingham/Chesterfield
Manager, In 'n' Out	00	
Susan Holdway, Ramada Encore	30	Derby
Marie Johnson, Holiday Inn	49	Derby/Nottingham
Nick Hogg, Challenge Consulting	6	Woodborough
Kath Brookbanks, Premier Inn and Touch	50	Nottingham
Base	10	Davbu
Paul Ashburner, Tradeweb Solutions	10	Derby
Oliver Smith, Accent Print Limited	9	Stanton by Dale
Paul Newbold, Advance Forwarding	8	Malbourne
Limited	4	Ohastarfiald
Hazel Wainwright, Data Quotes	1	Chesterfield
Trevor Wood, Network Midlands	1	Leicestershire
George Nicholson, Managing Director,	2	Derby
OPUS Telecoms	0	Daulau
Geoff Seymore, Blue Sky Connections	2	Derby
Noleen O'Connor, Costco	200	Derbyshire
Rhys Adams, Director, Cocoon Group Ltd	2	Nottingham
Ilze Skujina, University of Nottingham	1001	Nottingham
Tony de Villiers, Education Business	12	Nottingham
Futures		
Des Pernell, Director, Recognition	1	Derbyshire
Express		Otentatend
Tracy Muir, Customer Services Manager,	4	Stapleford
NSS		Illicatera
John Hill, Publisher, Bradgate Publishing	3	Ilkeston
Maria Iliffe, Owner, Iliffe Consulting	1	Wigston
Steve Wakeling, Independent Business	2800 members	Nottingham
Association	10	L a rada ra
Martyn Preece, Sales Manager, Inclarity	10	London

Communications Ltd		
Steve Blount, Managing Director, Arden	1	Nottingham
Business Management		
Steve Blount, Chairman, Growth	1	Nottingham
Investment		
Jeremy Daniel, John A Stephens	95	Nottingham
David Robinson, Brand President,	130	Nottingham
Speedo International Limited (Part of		
Pentland Brands)		
Bruce Hallas, Marmalade Box Ltd	1	Nottingham
Colin Stobbart, Corporate Development	1000	Derby
Manager, Rolls-Royce Group plc		
Tina McIntyre, Course Director, Common	2	Derbyshire
Purpose		
Christopher Taylor, Taylor Hall	6	Derby
Pat Zadora, Chairman, East Midlands	loD, FSB,	Derbyshire/Nottinghamshire
Business Forum	EEF, ICAEW	

Messages of support have also been received by:

Sir Harry Djanogly Charlotte Hogg, Chief Executive, Experian

# **Derbyshire Partnership Forum**

### 24 September 2010

### **Total Place Review of Advice Services**

#### Purpose of the report

To update partners on the progress made in the Total Place Review of Advice Services.

### **Background and information**

At the Derbyshire Partnership Forum (DPF) meeting on 26 March 2010 partners agreed to undertake a review of Advice Services using the Total Place methodology, which seeks to transform services, deliver efficiencies and build a body of knowledge and learning about how cross-agency working can deliver these.

The scope of the review was agreed, and work has been on-going throughout the summer to gather information from those organisations delivering or commissioning advice services within the county. Desk based research, face to face interviews and questionnaires have contributed to the evidence base, which includes information relating to providers, the type of advice, locations and timings etc, plus information on clients, their queries and demographics. Financial information relating to the advice sector within the county has also been collated.

A draft report based on the information collected will be circulated prior to the meeting.

#### **Next Steps**

Partners will be asked to consider the initial findings and forward any comments or further contributions by the end of October 2010. Partners are also asked to discuss their own organisations potential actions, which may impact on the future of advice services, and share these. There may also be some benefit in a collective discussion, identifying joint actions for the future. In the meantime, Forum members are asked to sign up to the principles set out in the report.

#### Recommendations

It is recommended that

- 1. Partners endorse the initial findings of the review, and forward any comments or further contributions by the end of October 2010;
- 2. Partners consider their own organisational plans in relation to the review, and share them with appropriate Forum members;
- 3. An update report is brought to the next meeting of the forum in December 2010.

### David Lowe Strategic Director – Policy and Community Safety Derbyshire County Council

For more information please contact: Jude Wildgoose Derbyshire County Council Judith.wildgoose@derbyshire.gov.uk 01629 538439

# **Derbyshire Partnership Forum**

# 24 September 2010

# **Report of the County Council Chief Executive**

# PARTNERSHIP ANNUAL REPORT 2009/10

# Purpose of the report

To seek approval from partners for the partnership Annual Report 2009/10.

# **Background and information**

At the Derbyshire Partnership Forum meeting on 25 June 2010 partners attended a workshop to review progress against priorities set out in the Derbyshire Sustainable Community Strategy 2009-2014.

At the workshop, partners identified the key achievements over the last year and the difference partners had made to improving the lives of local people.

The outcomes from the workshop have now been written up into a short partnership Annual Report. The report is intended to highlight the key activities and outcomes achieved by the partnership during 2009/10, and to complement the partnership's LAA reports which give a more detailed overview of performance in priority areas. The report is in the final stages of preparation and will be circulated before the meeting.

It is intended that a shorter public facing summary of the report will also be produced.

# **Recommendations**

Partners are asked to approve the partnership Annual Report 2009/10.

Nick Hodgson Chief Executive Derbyshire County Council